
Aurora City Council Agenda November 08, 2016 Page 1 of 2 
  

AGENDA 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, November 08, 2016, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 

21420 Main Street NE, Aurora, OR 97002 
 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE AURORA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
  

2. CITY RECORDER DOES ROLL CALL 
 Mayor Bill Graupp 
 Councilor Jason Sahlin 
 Councilor Tom Heitmanek 
 Councilor Bob Southard 
 Councilor Kris Sallee 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
a) City Council Minutes – October, 2016 
b) Planning Commission – October, 2016 
c) Historic Review Board Meeting Minutes – NA, 2016 

 
4. CORRESPONDENCE –  

 
5. VISITOR 

 
 Anyone wishing to address the Aurora City Council concerning items not already on the 
 meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the Aurora 
 City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 
  
 

6. REPORTS 
 

a) Mayors Report 
b) Planning 
c) Public Safety 
d) Finance Officer 
e) Public Works 
f) Parks Committee 
g) City Recorder 
h) City Attorney 

• Letter sent to 21367 Hwy 99E for nuisance violation  
 
 



Aurora City Council Agenda November 08, 2016 Page 2 of 2 
  

 
7. ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 
a) Ordinance 484 An Ordinance Amending the City of Aurora Municipal Code (Buffer 

Requirements For Marijuana Businesses in the Industrial Zone) 1st reading.  
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Discussion and or Action on Ordinance Number 484 
b) Discussion and or Action on Going Out For RFP for Legal Services. 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS  
 

a) NA 
 
 

10. FUTURE TOPICS 
a)  

11. ADJOURN 
 
  



Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 1of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

Minutes 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, October 11, 2016, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 

21420 Main Street NE, Aurora, OR 97002 
 

 
STAFF PRESENT: Kelly Richardson, City Recorder 
   Mary Lambert, Finance Officer 
   Darrel Lockard, Public Works Superintendent 
   Officer Bell, Marion County 
   Eleanor Beatty, Kaiser Law 
                       Linda Kendrick,Kaiser law 
   Renata Wakeley, City Planner 
    
STAFF ABSENT:   
 
 
 
VISITORS PRESENT:  

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 Meeting was called to order by Mayor Bill Graupp at 7:00 pm 
 

2. CITY RECORDER DOES ROLL CALL 
 Mayor William Graupp- Present 
 Councilor Jason Sahlin - Present 
 Councilor Kris Sallee-Present 
 Councilor Robert Southard-Present 
 Councilor Tom Heitmanek - Absent 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes – September,2016  
b) Planning Commission – August, 2016 
c) Historic Review Board Meeting – NA 

 
ACTION ITEM: NA 

  

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 2of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented was made by Councilor Sallee and is 
seconded by Councilor Southard.  Motion approved by all.  

 
 
 

4. CORRESPONDENCE –  
a) Wave Broadband Rate Increase Notice. No discussion 
b) Koho and Beatty name change and restructure notice to Keizer Law, Councilor Sallee asks if 

a RFP is needed and Mayor Graupp states the contract just rolls over.  
c) Defazio Letter, This letter cam out following the BIO Opinion for salmon habitat. The main 

concern here is that projects are being delayed.  
 

  Action Item: Place RFP for Attorney Services on the November Agenda 
 
 

5. VISITORS 
 

 Anyone wishing to address the Aurora City Council concerning items not already on the 
 meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the Aurora 
 City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 
 

• No one speaks at this time.  
   

6. PUBLIC HEARING, Opens at 7:10 PM  
 
a) Discussion and or Action on Proposed LA-16-01 Text Amendments to Remove the 1000 Foot 

Buffer between Marijuana Businesses in the Industrial Zone. Mayor Graupp states the legal 
statements and asks for any declarations at this time. Hearing none and moving on City 
Planner Wakeley gives her staff report.  

TO:   Aurora City Commission   

FROM: Renata Wakeley, City Planner 

RE: Legislative Amendment 2016-01 (LA-16-01) 

DATE:  October 5, 2016 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The City Council’s options for taking action on Legislative Amendment 16-01 include the 
following:   

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 3of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

A. Adopt the findings in the staff report and adopt Legislative Amendment 16-01: 
1. As presented by staff and recommended by the Planning Commission; or 
2. As amended by the City Council (stating revisions). 

B. Take no action on Legislative Amendment 16-01. 
C. Continue the public hearing: 

1. To a time-certain, or  
2. Indefinitely 

BACKGROUND 

In January 2016, the Aurora City Council adopted Ordinance 480 amending the Commercial and 
Industrial zone codes to adopt reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions on marijuana 
related businesses, including a restriction on marijuana grow sites and/or processing sites 
requiring a 1000-foot buffer between other marijuana businesses (established at the time of 
initial permit application). 

 

The public hearings and staff reports related to the adoption of Ordinance 480 can be found in 
file #LA-2015-01. 

 

On August 18, 2016, the City of Aurora received an application to amend the Industrial zone 
code (Section 16.16) to remove the 1,000-foot buffer requirement between marijuana businesses 
(See Exhibit B). 

 
The following sections of the Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) are proposed for amendment: 

• 16.16 Industrial  
 
Legislative Amendment 16-01 includes the draft code amendments to the Aurora Municipal 
Code. The revisions are attached in a bold and strikethrough format for review purposes (see 
Exhibit A).   
 
 
FINDING OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 
Staff and the Aurora Planning Commission, after careful consideration of the testimony and 
evidence in the record, adopted the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions: 
 

1. In accordance with the post-acknowledgement plan amendment process set forth in 
Oregon Revised Statute 197.610(1), the City Planner submitted the draft proposed 
amendments to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development on 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 4of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

September 12, 2016, 23-days prior to the first evidentiary hearing and 30-days prior to 
the City Council hearing tentatively scheduled for October 11, 2016.  

2. Amendments to the Aurora Municipal Code, Comprehensive Plan, and/or Maps are 
considered Legislative Amendments subject to 16.80.20. Staff finds the application is 
subject to section 16.80.020 as a Legislative Amendment as the applicant proposes a 
change to the Industrial zone code for all industrial properties within the City of Aurora 
that applies to a broad class of people and a variety of factual situations and any change 
would be an expression of local government policy rather than a closely circumscribed 
factual situation or a relatively small number of impacted parties. As such, legislative 
amendment application shall be processed in accordance with the procedures and 
standards set forth in AMC 16.74-Procedures for Decision Making-Legislative. A 
legislative application may be approved or denied. 

3. AMC 16.74.030 outlines notice requirements. At least ten days prior to the first public 
hearing, the City shall publish notice in a newspaper of general circulation. The notice of 
the planning commission and city council hearings was published in the Canby Herald on 
September 21, 2016, at least 10 days prior to the scheduled October 4, 2016 Planning 
Commission hearing. In addition, owners of industrially zoned properties within the 
Aurora urban growth boundary were mailed notice of the pending application on 
September 21, 2016. 

4. Proposed amendments for consideration of legislative changes to the provisions of the 
Comprehensive Plan, implementing ordinances and maps are a legislative action. Section 
16.74 calls for amendments to the Development Code to be processed as a 
recommendation by the Planning Commission and the decision by the City Council.  

5. AMC 16.74.060 includes the standards for decision of Legislative Amendments as 
outlined under FINDINGS below. 

6. The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed legislative amendments at their 
October 4, 2016 public hearing and recommended the City Council adopt LA-2016-01 
after their October 11, 2016 public hearing via a vote of 5-1. 

 
 

FINDINGS 

In accordance with 16.74.060.A., the recommendation by the Planning Commission and the decision by 

the Council shall be based on consideration of the following factors: 

1. Any applicable statewide planning goals and guidelines adopted under Oregon 
Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 197; 

 
FINDINGS: Goal 1, Citizen Involvement: A public hearing on the proposed amendments is 
schedule before the Planning Commission on October 4, 2016 and a second hearing is scheduled 
before the City Council on October 11, 2016. Notice was posted at City Hall and published in the 
Canby Herald. Owners of industrially zoned properties within the Aurora urban growth boundary 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 5of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

were mailed notice of the pending application on September 21, 2016. The staff report was 
available for review one week prior to the Planning Commission and City Council hearings. This 
is consistent with City procedures. Staff and the Planning Commission found Goal 1 is met. 

 

Goal 2, Land Use Planning: The proposal does not involve exceptions to the Statewide Goals. 
Adoption actions are consistent with the acknowledged AMC for processing of legislative 
amendment applications to the zoning ordinance. Goal 2 generally supports clear and thorough 
local procedures. Staff and the Planning Commission found Goal 2 is met. 

 

Goal 3, Agricultural Lands and Goal 4, Forest lands are found not to be applicable. 

 

Goal 5, Open Spaces, Natural Resources, and Historic Areas: The proposed amendments do not 
affect regulations within the Aurora Historic District nor does it affect open spaces or natural 
resources. Goal 5 does not apply.   

 

Goal 6, Air, Water and Land Resource Quality: Goal 6 is not applicable. The proposal does not 
address Goal 6 resources.  

 

Goal 7, Natural Hazards: Goal 7 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 7 
resources.  

 

Goal 8, Recreational Needs: Goal 8 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 8 
resources. 

 

Goal 9, Economic Development: The draft code amendments responds to an application received 
from a tenant on an industrially zoned property. According to the applicant, the removal of the 
1000-foot buffer from other marijuana related businesses would benefit the City’s economic 
development by increasing potential city revenue via increased business and potential taxation 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 6of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

and would promote employment and business opportunities in the industry. Staff and the 
Planning Commission found Goal 9 is met. 

 

Goal 10, Housing: Goal 10 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 10 resources.  

 

Goal 11, Public Facilities and Services: Goal 11 is not applicable. The proposal does not address 
Goal 11 issues. 

 

Goal 12, Transportation: Goal 12 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 12 
issues. 

 

Goal 13, Energy Conservation: Goal 13 is not applicable as the code amendments address 
permitted uses under State law on properties already zoned for industrial development. The 
proposal does not address Goal 13 resources.  

 

Goal 14, Urbanization: Goal 14 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 14 issues 
as the proposed code amendment applies to existing industrially zoned properties within the City 
limits and permissible uses within these zones. 

 
ORS 197 does not include specific notice requirements for legislative processes but the City met 
all noticing requirements under AMC for Legislative Amendments. ORS 227.186, more 
commonly known as Measure 56 notice, does not apply as the proposed amendment does not 
reduce permissible uses of properties in the affected zones. Owners of industrially zoned 
properties within the Aurora urban growth boundary were mailed notice of the pending 
application on September 21, 2016. 
 

2. Any federal or state statutes or rules found applicable; 
 
FINDINGS: Staff finds the adoption actions are consistent with Oregon Revised Statute 
197.610(1) for notice to the Department of Land Conservation and Development. Measure 56 
notice was not required as the proposed amendments do not reduce permissible uses on industrial 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 7of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

lands. Notice of the proposed code amendment was mailed to all industrial zoned property within 
the urban growth boundary.  
 
Beyond the State-imposed and regulated standards for marijuana related facilities, jurisdictions 
are permitted to adopt reasonable time, place and manner restrictions to meet the intent of their 
development code and comprehensive plans. Proposed amendments to address these new 
regulations and to further clarify the locations of specific facilities were adopted via Ordinance 
480 and include buffers from schools and daycares; prohibiting marijuana related businesses 
from being adjacent to residential zones, parks or churches; limiting hours of operation; and 
requiring a conditional use permit application and approval.  
 
According to the applicant, the additional requirement for a 1000-foot buffer between marijuana 
related businesses is unnecessary as it does not provide additional protections against security 
threats nor does it maintain higher livability standards for residents. The applicant also states the 
AMC already contains fair and thoughtful provisions to safeguard the City’s livability and limits 
the marijuana industries footprint upon the City via other conditional use permit criteria and 
because of the State of Oregon’s existing security standards, the AMC buffer requirement is 
unnecessary.   
 
Staff and the Planning Commission found the City may amend the Industrial zone code to 
remove the 1000-foot buffer requirement and still meet applicable state statutes related to 
marijuana grow and processing sites and this criterion is met. 
  

3. The applicable comprehensive plan policies and map; and 
 

The applicable Aurora Comprehensive Plan Goals align with the Statewide Planning Goals and 
associated policies as outlined under FINDINGS, subsection A.1 above. Staff and the Planning 
Commission found the proposed amendment to the industrial zone code can meet this criteria, as 
outlined under subsection A.1 above.  

 
4. The applicable provisions of the implementing ordinances. 

 

FINDINGS: The draft code amendment responds to request from a property owner and tenant of 
industrially zoned property. The proposed code amendment is not found to deter employment or 
business opportunity but rather to clarify locations of a permitted conditional use in the industrial 
zone and allow for greater economic uses of industrial properties while maintaining the 
permitted and conditional uses in the zone, and the zone development and design standards. 

 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 8of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

Staff and the Planning Commission found the proposed code amendment can be adopted in 
compliance with the implementing ordinances as the proposed code amendment does not 
proposed to amend the development or design standards of the applicable zone or other 
requirements of the Aurora Municipal Code. Staff and the Planning Commission found this 
criterion is met. 

 
In accordance with 16.74.060.B., consideration may also be given to proof of a substantial 
change in circumstances, a mistake, or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan or implementing 
ordinance which is the subject of the application.  
 
FINDINGS: Staff and the Planning Commission found there was no change in circumstance, 
mistake or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan or implementing ordinances. Rather, the 
proposed code amendment is a result of an application for zone text amendment from Lovena 
Green Farms.  In accordance with AMC 16.74.020.A.5, an owner of property or contract 
purchaser may apply for a zone code text amendment. The application is signed by the property 
owner of record. Staff and the Planning Commission found this criterion does not apply.   
 
 
EXHIBIT A  Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) section 16.16- Industrial zone code proposed 

amendments 
EXHIBIT B Zoning Ordinance Amendment application 
 

• Questions for the City Planner, hearing none move on to testimony 
• Applicant presents to council their application request for removal of the 1000 foot 

buffer stipulation in Ordinance 480. Applicant feels that the state highly regulates these 
types of facilities and believes the buffer zone violates goal 9  we believe that this type 
of business enhances security, livability and economic development.  

• No one else spoke during this time either for or against the application.  
Open for comments or discussion for City Council, 

• Mayor Graupp asks if 10am-5pm hours of operation impact the industrial zone, Wakeley 
states yes it does and the applicant is open to removing it and tacking it on the the text 
amendment if that is alright with all concerned.  

• At this time council discusses that this text amendment would potentially open the 
entire zone up to these types of business and if everyone is ok with that then we can 
move forward. Councilor Sallee is concerned with setting precedence and Wakeley 
explains this is not an exception or precedence because it opens it up to the entire 
Industrial zone.  

• Councilor Southard enquires about the amount of tax revenue that could be generated 
and at this point it is unknown.  

• Council also discusses the potential of changing the 1000 foot buffer from entire 
industrial zone to 1000 foot buffer between each property line.  

• Hearing closed at 8:09 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 9of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

Councilor Sahlin also has issues with the many violations that are happening on site and how our code 
doesn’t allow us to stop approvals/application process when violations are on site. Which seems to be a 
consensus of the group this is a concern.  
 
 
A Motion is made to approve the application and recommendation from the Aurora Planning 
Commission with two changes one to remove the 1000 foot buffer between businesses to 100 foot 
buffer between properties and to remove the hours of operation stipulation for the industrial zone only 
by Councilor Sahlin and is seconded by Councilor Southard. 3 in favor, Graupp, Southard & Sahlin 1 
against, Sallee.  

 
7. REPORTS 

 
a) Mayor Bill Graupp informs council he has been to two separate functions in the last 2 weeks 

first at PSU for populations forecasting an League of Oregon Cities conference.  Top 
legislative concerns are, Recreational Immunity, PERS, Property tax reform.  

 
Council discussed. RFP for legal services.  
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 

 
b) Planning, has been working on various code updates to address recent concerns on 

processes.  
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 

c) Public Safety, Officer Bell reports nothing really unusual except to say that on Friday 
there was a report of a clown coming to the North Marion School so had to follow up 
on that it turned out to be nothing. One major call on a person sleeping in a car with 
children present there was an arrest made and DHS called.  
 
 
Council discussed, NA 

 
ACTION ITEM: NA 
 

d) Finance,  
• Report attached is going well normal activity.  
• Attended first conference in Salem there were 7 sessions great training. 
• Audit questionnaires have gone out. 

 
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 10of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

 
e) Public Works 

• Report is attached Lockard informs council that there was a power outage and a few 
systems had to be reset. PGE doesn’t know what caused the outage.  

• Work is moving forward on the Storm Water Master Plan.  
• More discussion regarding tree removal in and around the park the contractor has 

been delayed.  
 

Council discussed.   
 

ACTION ITEM: NA 
 

f) Parks Committee 
Councilor Sahlin nothing really other than the trees. Mayor Graupp informs the group 
the school doesn’t have any extra soccer goals.   
ACTION ITEM:  
 
 

g) City Recorder 
• Report as attached  

 
Council discussed, sending a letter to Cam 
 
ACTION ITEM: Contact G. Cam again regarding paving.  
 

h) City Attorney 
• City Attorney report, Linda Kendrick passed the bar and congratulations.  
• Nothing has been filed as of yet from Ross RV Cart.  
• Mr. Bixler had requested that his performance bond be released and it was the 

consensus of the council to move in that direction at the successful closing of the 
property.  
 
Council discussed,  What they should do regarding the Reneau 21367 Hwy 99E property 
and it was the consensus of the council to move forward with fines and send another 
letter and discuss next steps.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Councilor Sahlin is concerned with the maintenance and upkeep of the 
sidewalks and trees and would like Planning Commission to look into the legal 
precedence on this.  
 
Mayor Graupp informs the group that after having lunch with Dennis Koho he had 
announced that he may be opening a new practice and is interested in the cities business 
again.  
 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  October 2016 Page 11of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

 
8. ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 716 A Resolution to Add City of Gervais to 

the IGA for Court Judge Services. 
 
Motion to approve Resolution Number 7169 and accept the proposed addition of The City of 
Gervais  to the IGA for Court Judge Services is made by Councilor Sahlin and is seconded by 
Councilor Southard. Motion Passed by all.  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Discussion and or Action of Resolution Number 716 and the Addendum to the IGA for Court 

Judge Services.  
 

 
10. OLD BUSINESS  

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Employee Manual, to have staff begin review.  
b) Discussion and or Action on Council Procedures. Councilor Sallee wants to review this next 

month.  
c) Discussion and or Action on Code Chapter 8 regarding noxious vegetation, Consensus of 

Council to leave it as is.  
 

 
11. FUTURE TOPICS 

a) Discuss going out for RFP for Legal Services.  
 

12. ADJOURN  
 

 Mayor Graupp adjourned the October 11, 2016 Council Meeting at 9:10 PM.  
 

 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Bill Graupp, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kelly Richardson, CMC 
City Recorder 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


























 

1 

 

City Recorder Report 

Memo 
To: City Council 

From: Kelly Richardson 

CC: None 

Date: 11/3/2016 

Re: Recorders Report Month of October 2016 report 

Activities and ongoing projects are as follows: 

 Ongoing secretarial duties for the City Council and Planning and Historic Review Board, along 
with attending the meetings once a month.  

 . Working on publication documents 

 Attending Conference Committee And Records Committee Meetings 

 Records Request update  

  0 pending request  

 Ongoing needs of the City, discussion items.  

 Working on various items requested from last month meeting 

o Council Procedures samples 

o Employee manual, I have almost all of the necessary edits done and have been in 
contact with CIS regarding any time sensitive issues.  

o IGA List  

 Working on various code violations; 

o 1 Citation went out in October 

 Updating of website pages, going slow but have been plugging away at it.  

 Working on analyzing various procedures.   





Ordinance 484 
Text Amend 1000 Foot buffer 
In Industrial Zone Marijuana  Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE 484 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE AURORA DEVELOPMENT CODE, TITLE 16 OF THE 
AURORA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATED TO BUFFER REQUIREMENTS FOR MARIJUANA 

BUSINESSES IN THE INDUSTRIAL ZONE 
 
WHEREAS, the Aurora Municipal Code, more commonly known as “Title 16 of the Aurora 
Development Code”, includes regulations concerning the location of land uses within the various 
zones within the City of Aurora; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Aurora City Council wishes to amend 16.16-Industrial Zone of the Aurora 
Municipal Code to establish rules governing buffering requirements between marijuana 
businesses in the zone; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Aurora Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on October 4, 2016 at 
which time interested parties were given full opportunity to be present and heard and passed a 
motion recommending the City Council approve the proposed rules amending the Aurora 
Municipal Code under Legislative Amendment 2016-01 (File No. LA-16-01). 
 
WHEREAS, the Aurora City Council conducted a public hearing on October 11, 2016 at which 
time interested parties were given full opportunity to be present and heard on the proposed 
rules amending the Aurora Municipal Code under Legislative Amendment 2016-01 (File No. LA-
16-01). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF AURORA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Aurora does hereby adopt the staff report dated 
October 5, 2016, including those certain findings of fact and conclusionary findings and 
supporting documentation contained in the staff report. 
 
 Section 2. The City Council of the City of Aurora does hereby amend Title 16- Aurora 
Development Code sections 16.16-Industrial as included under “Exhibit A” of this Ordinance. 
 
 PASSED and adopted by the City Council of the City of Aurora on this 13th day of December, 
2016 by the following votes: 
 
 
 
 
 AYES:   ___________________________________ 
 
 NAYS:  ___________________________________ 
 
 ABSTAIN:    _____________________________ 
 



Ordinance 484 
Text Amend 1000 Foot buffer 
In Industrial Zone Marijuana  Page 2 
 

 ABSENT:   ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Approved by the Mayor on this 13th day of December, 2016. 
 
 
SIGNED: ______________________________________________________________  
   Bill Graupp, Mayor     Date 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________________________________________ 
   Kelly Richardson, CMC   City Recorder   Date 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 

   
 
 

Chapter 16.16 
  
I INDUSTRIAL ZONE 
  
Sections: 
16.16.010 Purpose. 
16.16.020 Permitted uses. 
16.16.030 Conditional uses. 
16.16.040 Development standards. 
  
16.16.010 Purpose. 
 The land designated as industrial is the only area capable of accommodating 
anticipated economic development activities that are non-retail in nature. With its 
excellent transportation access, this area provides the opportunity for land-intensive 
commercial business, such as lumber yards or equipment sales and service, as well as 
lumber yards or equipment sales and service, as well as manufacturing. (Ord. 415 § 
7.65.010, 2002) 
  
16.16.020 Permitted uses. 
 In the I zone, all uses are subject to site development review, Chapter 16.58. Only the 
following uses and their accessory uses are permitted: 
 A. Agricultural supplies; 
 B. Nurseries, greenhouses, and landscaping supplies requiring outside storage 
including wholesale or retail; 
 C. Cabinet or carpentry shop; 
 D. Research services; 
 E. Retail facilities on sites greater than one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet; 
 F. Manufacturing of finished products excluding all processes involving the refining or 
rendering of fats or oils; 
 G. Manufacturing of components for use in finished products excluding all processes 
involving the refining or rendering of fats or oils; 
 H. Packaging of previously processed materials; 
 I. Participation sports and recreation: indoor and outdoors; 
 J. Processing and packing of food products excluding all processes involving the 
refining or rendering of fats or oils; 
 K. Processing of previously processed materials for use in components or finished 
products excluding all processes involving the refining or rendering of fats or oils; 
 L. Processing of materials for use in any construction or building trades; 
 M. Public support facilities; 
 N. Tire retreading or vulcanizing; 
 O. Major impact utilities including telecommunications facilities subject to Chapter 
16.50; 
 P. Warehouse and wholesale distribution and sales; 
 Q. Welding, sheet metal or machine shop; 



EXHIBIT A 

   
 
 

 R. Eating or drinking establishments; 
 S. Parking structure or lot or storage garage; 
 T. Printing or publishing plant; 
 U. Veterinary office or animal hospital; 
 V. Service station, car wash, motor vehicle, farm implement, boat or trailer rental, 
sales or services including body repairs; 
 W. Machinery repair; 
 X. Transportation terminals and storage yards; 
 Y. Participation sports and recreation, indoor and outdoor. (Ord. 415 § 7.65.020, 
2002) 
  
16.16.030 Conditional uses. 
 The following uses and their accessory uses may be permitted when authorized by 
the planning commission in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 16.60, other 
relevant sections of this title and any conditions imposed by the planning commission: 
 A. Child day care facility, licensed by the state; 
 B. Junkyard or wrecking yard screened from adjacent streets; 
 C. Commercial amusement facilities including bowling alleys, video arcades, and 
movie theaters other than adult motion picture theaters; 
 D. Home occupations (Type II) subject to Chapter 16.46; 
 E. Recycle stations, provided that a ten (10) foot perimeter setback containing both 
externally visible landscaping meeting buffering standards and solid screening surrounds 
the property, all operations are conducted entirely within buildings, and all building 
setbacks shall be a minimum of thirty (30) feet from any property line. (Ord. 415 § 
7.65.030, 2002) 
 F. Marijuana grow site and/or marijuana processing site subject to the following 
standards: 
 1. Buffers which shall only be measured at the initial land use application and not 
subsequent annual renewals: 

a. Elementary, middle or high school, public or private: 1000 feet 
b. Day care: 1000 feet 
c. Other properties that contact a marijuana businesses:  1000 feet 
d. May not be adjacent to a residential zone, a public park, or a church. 

2. The use must be located within a permanent, enclosed structure. 
3. The use may not be allowed as a home occupation. 
4. Applicant and all employees must pass a criminal background check. 
5. The term of a conditional use approval may not exceed one year. 
6. Waste materials containing any amount of marijuana or by products must be locked 
in a secure container on-site. 
7. Hours of operation are limited to 10 am to 5 pm. 
7.8. Drive through windows are prohibited. 

  
16.16.040 Development standards. 
 A. There is no minimum size for lots or parcels served by municipal sewer. Minimum 
sizes for lots or parcels without municipal sewer shall be as determined by the county 
sanitarian. 



EXHIBIT A 

   
 
 

 B. There is no minimum lot width or depth. 
 C. Unless otherwise specified, the minimum setback requirements are as follows: 
 1. There is no minimum front yard setback except as required for buffering of off 
street parking in accordance with Section 16.38.050. 
 2. On corner lots, the minimum setback for the side facing the street shall be ten (10) 
feet. 
 3. No additional side or rear yard setback shall be required except fifty (50) feet 
screened and buffered in accordance with Chapter 16.38 shall be required where 
abutting a residential zoning district. 
 D. No building shall exceed fifty (50) feet in height. Within one hundred (100) feet of a 
residential zone, no building shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height. All buildings 
greater than thirty-five (35) feet in height are subject to Chapter 16.24. 
 E. Landscaping shall be in accordance with Chapter 16.38. All outside storage areas 
require buffering and screening as defined in Chapter 16.38. 
 F. Parking shall be in accordance with Chapter 16.42. 
 G. All properties located outside the designated historic commercial overlay and the 
historic residential overlay and adjacent to Highway 99 or Ehlen Road shall be 
collectively referenced as "gateway properties." The standards of Chapter 16.56 shall 
apply to all aspects of the site including, but not limited to, structural facade, yard and 
landscaping that are immediately adjacent to and visible from Highway 99 or Ehlen 
Road. 
 H. Additional requirements shall include any applicable section of this title. (Ord. 415 
§ 7.65.040, 2002) 
  
 


	1 agenda-council-november-2016
	2 minutes-council-october-2016
	Goal 5, Open Spaces, Natural Resources, and Historic Areas: The proposed amendments do not affect regulations within the Aurora Historic District nor does it affect open spaces or natural resources. Goal 5 does not apply.

	3 minutes-planning-october-2016
	4 Finance Report November 2016
	5 public works report september
	5a City Recorder Report October2016- - Copy - Copy
	6 21367 Hwy 99E Property
	7 Ordinance 484 Industrial Zone Buffer
	8 EXHIBIT A_16 16 Industrial_final amendments

